
 

Page 1 of 223 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 02, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of November 18, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Cedar Heights Drive 
Reconstruction Project and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published November 22, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution approving a public improvement for the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project and 
authorizing acquisition of private property for said project. 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #2958, granting a partial property tax exemption to Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C. for 
construction of an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 Capital Way, upon its 
third & final consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of November 18, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) FY2019 Audit Report.  
b) Recreation Center Usage Study. 
c) Bills & Payroll. 

6. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of November 18, 2019 relative to a Long-
Term Climate Action Plan. 

7. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of October 2019. 

8. Approve the application of Greenleaf Tobacco and Vapor, 5901 University Avenue, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

1



 

Page 2 of 223 

9. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Clarion Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class B liquor - renewal. 
b) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer - change in ownership. 
d) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

10. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service Agreement with Professional Office 
Services, Inc. relative to printing the City's Currents newsletter. 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Change Order Number One to the Agreement for 
the Installation and Use of LAMA Software with the Davenport Group USA, Ltd relative to Firehouse 
data migration. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Facility Use Agreement with the American 
National Red Cross relative to use of the Recreation and Fitness Center as a shelter during a 
disaster emergency. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agency Agreement with LeadsOnline, LLC 
relative to tracking pawned merchandise. 

14. Resolution approving a Claim for Non-Residential Relocation Assistance Reimbursement, in 
conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

15. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peterson Contractors, 
Inc. for the West 20th Street Dry Run Creek RCB Culvert Replacement Project. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 10A to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates relative to the West Viking Road 
Reconstruction - Hudson Road to Production Drive Recreational Trail Infill Project. 

17. Resolution receiving and filing the Evaluative Report of the Planning & Zoning Commission, and 
setting December 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider taking action on a petition 
requesting the reestablishment of the College Hill Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District 
(SSMID). 

18. Resolution setting December 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into an 
Agreement for Private Development with Prestige WW, L.L.C. 

19. Resolution setting December 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into an 
Agreement for Private Development with River Place Properties II, L.C. 

20. Resolution setting December 16, 2019 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into an 
Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to 
The Vault L.L.C. 

21. Resolution setting December 10, 2019 as the date of consultation and January 6, 2020 as the date 
of public hearing on a proposed Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

22. Allow Bills and Payroll of December 2, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

2



 

Page 3 of 223 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, NOVEMBER 18, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52560 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of November 4, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52561 - City Clerk Danielsen announced that Item 23 on the Resolution Calendar was 

being removed from Agenda. 
 
52562 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of November 

8, 2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed 
amendment to the Zoning Agreement relative to conditions of the HWY-1, 
Highway Commercial District, for property located in the southwest corner of 
Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue. It was then moved by Darrah and 
seconded by Wieland that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52563 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III 
Sturch provided a brief summary of the proposed amendment and Jim Skaine, 
2215 Clay Street, expressed opposition to requested suspension of the rules to 
consider at three separate meetings. There being no one else present wishing to 
speak about the proposed amendment, the Mayor declared the hearing closed 
and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52564 - Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr and Green, responses by 

Planner III Sturch and supporting comments by Midland Atlantic Properties  
representative Nicole Chimento, it was moved by Green and seconded by 
Wieland that the rules requiring Ordinance #2959, rezoning property located 
generally on Lot 1 of The Point at Henry Farms, pursuant to provisions of a 
conditional zoning agreement associated with Ordinance #2933, which placed 
said property in the HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, to be considered at 
three separate meetings be suspended. The Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: Miller. Motion 
carried. 

 
It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2959, be 
passed upon its third and final consideration. The Mayor put the question on the 

4

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2959 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52565 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Building/Electrical Inspector. 
 
Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer. 
 
Receive, file and refer to the Planning & Zoning Commission a communication 
from College Hill Partnership relative to the renewal of the College Hill Self-
Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID).  
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Hansen's Dairy, 123 East 18th Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - 

renewal.  
b) Tony's La Pizzeria, 407 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal.  
c) Urban Pie, 200 State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
d) Five Corners Liquor & Wine, 809 East 18th Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52566 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland to receive and file the 

Committee of the Whole minutes of November 4, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Downtown Visioning Update.  
b) Bills & Payroll.  

    
   Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, response by 

Councilmember Miller and a brief recess from 7:16 P.M. to 7:27 P.M., the motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
52567 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Darrah that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,769, authorizing certification of eligible expenses for 
reimbursement from the College Hill, Downtown, Pinnacle Prairie, South Cedar 
Falls and Unified Tax Increment Financing Revenues. 

 
Resolution #21,770, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for legal fees, incentive payments, and project costs related to 
Peter Melendy Park and the Downtown Streetscape in the Downtown Urban 
Renewal Area. 

5

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,771, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for the Prairie Parkway & Viking Road Signalization Project in 
the Pinnacle Prairie Urban Renewal Area. 

 
Resolution #21,772, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for legal and administrative fees for projects in the South 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Resolution #21,773, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for Highway 58 Corridor Improvements, Industrial Park Street 
Patching, and administrative and legal fees in the Unified Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Resolution #21,774, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the 
Economic Development Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative 
to funding for the purchase of land in the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal 
Area. 

 
Resolution #21,775, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the 
Economic Development Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative 
to funding for the purchase of land in the Unified Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Resolution #21,776, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the 
General Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding for 
the Downtown Visioning Project in the Downtown Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Resolution #21,777, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Street 
Construction Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to funding 
for the 100 Block Alley Reconstruction Project and to support the Downtown 
Urban Renewal projects and planning in the Downtown Urban Renewal Area. 

 
Resolution #21,778, approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY19 
Annual Urban Renewal Report. 
 
Resolution #21,779, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Blacktop Service Company for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 
Resolution #21,780, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the University Avenue 
Reconstruction Project - Phase I. 

 
Resolution #21,781, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Municipal Pipe Tool Company, LLC, in the amount of $303,361.45, 
for the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
Resolution #21,782, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Municipal 

6

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Pipe Tool Company, LLC for the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

Resolution #21,783, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the 
Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project. 

 
Resolution #21,784, approving and authorizing execution of a Release of 
Minimum Assessment Agreement and Agreement for Private Development, and 
approving and accepting a Quit Claim Deed, relative to an Agreement for Private 
Development with BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. 

 
Resolution #21,785, approving and authorizing execution of a Termination of 
Agreement for Private Development, and approving and accepting a Warranty 
Deed, relative to an Agreement for Private Development with Schuerman 
Construction, Inc. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,769 through #21,785 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52568 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,786, 

approving and adopting the Imagine Downtown! - Cedar Falls Downtown Vision 
Plan, be adopted. Community Main Street Executive Director Carol Lilly 
expressed appreciation and support for the plan.  Following questions by 
Councilmembers Green and Kruse, comments by Roger White, 2303 Greenwood 
Avenue and Councilmember Wieland, and responses by Community Services 
Manager Howard and Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,786 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52569 -    It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,787, setting 

December 2, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a 
public improvement project for the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project 
and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project, be adopted. 
Following a question by Councilmember Darrah and response by Public Works 
Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,787 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52570 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that the bills and payroll of 

November 18, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 

7

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  
 
52571 - Northern Iowa Student Government Liaison Rebecca Aberle invited the public to 

attend upcoming named events on the University of Northern Iowa campus. 
 
 Community Development Director Sheetz provided an update on recent 

Downtown Streetscape improvements. 
 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson provided information regarding number of 

emergency response personnel that responded to two recent fire calls. 
 
52572 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to 
discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature 
disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental 
body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental 
body would receive for that property, following Public Forum. Upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

  
52573 - Whitney Smith, 2904 Neola Street, spoke about the recent election. 
 
 Roger White, 2303 Greenwood Avenue, congratulated the City on awards 

received for the University Avenue Reconstruction Project and commented on 
the roundabouts that were included in the project. 

 
 Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, expressed appreciation for removing the 

bump on Main Street, and Councilmember Blanford and Public Works Director 
Schrage responded to her requests for an extension of the pedestrian trail 
beyond Coneflower Parkway and pavement markings at a nearby intersection. 

 
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:54 P.M. 
 
 Mayor Brown reconvened the City Council meeting at 8:11 P.M. and stated that 

Property Acquisition had been discussed but that no further action was required 
at this time. 

 
52574 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:12 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

ITEM 1.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM:  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE:  November 26, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction  
    Public Hearing 
    Project Number RC-000-3171 
    IDOT STBG-SWAP-1185()—SG-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Cedar Heights Drive from East Viking 
Road to East Greenhill Road. The existing two-lane rural roadway will be replaced with 
a two-lane urban roadway that has a raised median from East Viking Road to Prairie 
Street, two-lane urban roadway that has a designated southbound left turn lane from 
Prairie Street to Huntington Road, and a two-lane urban roadway that has a center left 
turn lane from Huntington Road to East Greenhill Road. The project will include 
improvements to the sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. This project also includes the replacement of the existing traffic signal at 
the Cedar Heights Drive/East Greenhill Road intersection with a multilane roundabout 
and will include the construction of a single lane roundabout at the Cedar Heights 
Drive/Huntington Road intersection. Properties acquired for the project will be used for 
roadway and utility right-of-way. Plans for the project shows the need for fee title and/or 
easement acquisitions from approximately twenty (20) properties. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right of way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 

9

ITEM 2.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2958 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 
ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION CONSISTING OF A 
175,850 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND PRODUCTION FACILITY 

CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY BROADSTONE BCI IOWA, L.L.C., LOCATED 
AT 2900 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance provided 
a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate by certain 
new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with said exemption being 
provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial Property, of Article II, Tax 
Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., has completed and owns an approximate 
175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production facility, located at 2900 Capital 
Way Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 6 in 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West 
eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in 
the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range 
Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 16.16 
acres, more or less, 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the Cedar 
Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 21st day of October, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed since 
the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
  
 

10

ITEM 4.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 

 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance hereby 
grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate by new 
construction of an approximate 175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production 
facility constructed by Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., on property owned by Broadstone BCI 
Iowa, L.L.C., located at 2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 6 in 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West 
eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in 
the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range 
Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 16.16 
acres, more or less, 

to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 
of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the proper and timely filing of an application for exemption 
with the Black Hawk County Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value 
added which is eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
 
INTRODUCED: 

 
October 21, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: October 21, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION: November 4, 2019 

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
ATTEST:  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   
________________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

11

ITEM 4.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

November 18, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:40 p.m. on November 
18, 2019, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland.   Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Andrew Wind from the 
Waterloo Courier and Jack Patton from RDG Planning & Design attended, as well as 
members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
FY2019 Audit Report.  Lisa Roeding Controller/City Treasurer reviewed the FY2019 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  She stated the City is required to publish a 
complete set of financial statements presented in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Ms. Roeding stated the auditors reviewed and tested various 
things and gave an unmodified or clean opinion.  She explained the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis section provides a narrative from the management prospective 
and analytical overview of the City’s financial statements.  Ms. Roeding reviewed the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, stating the City had 11 federally funded 
grants totaling just over $3 million in expenditures.  She explained this report will be filed 
with the State Auditor’s office as required by Iowa Code and it will be posted on the 
City’s website.  A brief discussion was held.  Ms. Roeding said she would correct the 
sorting on the schedule on page 7 of the introductory section of the report.  David 
Wieland motioned to approve the FY2019 Audit Report and Daryl Kruse seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  Jennifer Rodenbeck Director of Finance and 
Business Operations made a brief comment regarding the Audit Report and thanked all 
of the employees for their part in the process.  

Mayor Brown moved on to the second item on the agenda Recreation Center Usage 
Study.  Bruce Verink, Recreation and Community Programs Manager introduced the 
consultant hired to complete the Recreation Center Usage study, Jack Patton from RDG 
Planning and Design.  Mr. Patton reviewed the findings of the study completed.  He 
stated they started the process in May with an online survey and there was community 
engagement with various small group meetings and a town hall meeting.  Mr. Patton 
reviewed the future needs for various spaces in the Recreation Center, he reviewed the 
top ten areas of the recreation center and noted which ones are undersized or the 
establishment of a new space would be beneficial.  He reviewed the top five spaces 
from the community survey.  He stated there was a lack of dedicated space in the 
Recreation Center of some of these areas. Also those younger than 16 year olds have 
limited opportunities at the Recreation Center.  He commented membership remains 
stable.  Mr. Patton recommended the city look at the necessary changes to the current 
limited facility spaces, expand the family market, expand the top five activities and look 
at aquatics. 

Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  Mr. Patton answered Councilman Green’s 
question on the 12,000 sq. foot lobby.  He stated the current lobby is a 12 feet wide 
hallway of sorts and this could be expanded to allow for seating for patrons and a 

12

ITEM 5.



waiting area.  Mr. Patton also explained the childcare area should be expanded and 
have added natural light. He stated this is an important asset.  He stated the school has 
a pool available but only during certain times of day for the community and a leisure 
pool opportunity was a frequent request they saw during the study.   

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Daryl Kruse 
moved to approve the bills and payroll as presented, Rob Green seconded the motion.  
The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:25 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

13

ITEM 5.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Duke Young Conference Room  

November 18, 2019 
 

The City Council held a special work session in the Duke Young Conference room at 
5:10 p.m. on November 18, 2019, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim 
Brown, Tom Blanford, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments, as well as members of the 
community.  

Mayor Brown then introduced the first item on the agenda, Long-term Climate Action 
Plan.  Ron Gaines, City Administrator stated a working Climate Action committee was 
formed since the June presentation by Eric Giddens from UNI- CEEE.  He stated the 
committee has met six times, and reviewed what other Iowa cities are doing and stated 
they have a lot of initiatives going on around the City of Cedar Falls.  Mr. Gaines stated 
the committee and CEEE both recommend to continue on with the process and hire a 
consultant.  Mr. Gaines stated the CIP will include requests for the consultant.   He 
stated this is a larger project than CEEE would like to coordinate.  He stated CFU and 
the City are cost sharing a Level 2 charging station on 2nd Street and exploring a Level 3 
station at a Main Street location.  Other recommendations include adding a Planner 
position to help coordinate the Climate Action Plan and in addition to their planning 
projects, also the City will work with CFU to complete an energy audit of all of its 
buildings. 

Mayor Brown opened it for discussion.  Councilmember Kruse asked about the cost for 
a consultant.  Jennifer Rodenbeck Director of Finance & Business Operations stated 
based on information they received from Iowa City and Dubuque a consultant will range 
from $70,000-80,000 and we would expect to have a study completed in 9 months. 
Council discussed community input.   Mr. Gaines stated the current committee is a 
working committee and not a public meeting.  He also said this can be a topic for Goal 
Setting in December.  David Wieland motioned to move the presented Climate Action 
Plan recommendations to Goal Setting in December.  Daryl Kruse seconded the motion.  
The motion carried unanimously. 

There being no further discussion, Daryl Kruse motioned to adjourn the work session, 
Frank Darrah seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously. Mayor Brown 
adjourned the meeting at 5:30 p.m.  

 

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

14

ITEM 6.



15

ITEM 7.



16

ITEM 7.



17

ITEM 7.



18

ITEM 7.



19

ITEM 7.



20

ITEM 7.



21

ITEM 7.



22

ITEM 7.



23

ITEM 7.



24

ITEM 7.



25

ITEM 7.



26

ITEM 7.



27

ITEM 7.



28

ITEM 7.



29

ITEM 7.



30

ITEM 7.



31

ITEM 7.



32

ITEM 7.



33

ITEM 7.



34

ITEM 7.



35

ITEM 7.



36

ITEM 7.



37

ITEM 7.



38

ITEM 7.



39

ITEM 7.



40

ITEM 7.



41

ITEM 7.



42

ITEM 7.



43

ITEM 7.



44

ITEM 7.



45

ITEM 7.



46

ITEM 7.



47

ITEM 7.



48

ITEM 7.



49

ITEM 7.



50

ITEM 7.



51

ITEM 7.



52

ITEM 7.



53

ITEM 7.



54

ITEM 7.



55

ITEM 7.



56

ITEM 7.



57

ITEM 7.



58

ITEM 7.



59

ITEM 7.



60

ITEM 7.



61

ITEM 7.



62

ITEM 7.



63

ITEM 7.



64

ITEM 7.



65

ITEM 7.



66

ITEM 7.



67

ITEM 7.



68

ITEM 7.



69

ITEM 7.



70

ITEM 7.



71

ITEM 7.



72

ITEM 7.



73

ITEM 7.



74

ITEM 7.



75

ITEM 7.



76

ITEM 7.



77

ITEM 7.



78

ITEM 7.



79

ITEM 7.



80

ITEM 7.



81

ITEM 7.



82

ITEM 7.



83

ITEM 7.



84

ITEM 7.



85

ITEM 7.



86

ITEM 7.



87

ITEM 7.



88

ITEM 7.



89

ITEM 7.



90

ITEM 7.



91

ITEM 7.



92

ITEM 7.



93

ITEM 7.



94

ITEM 7.



95

ITEM 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  November 26, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Clarion Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class B liquor - renewal. 

b) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

c) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer - change in ownership. 

d) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor - change in 
ownership. 

96

ITEM 9.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Jim Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: November 21, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Agreement with Professional Office Services for Printing Currents 

 

The contract for printing services for Currents magazine was up for renewal this year.  
We requested bids from several companies and had three returned.  We’ve included a 
summary of the bids below:   

 
  
 
We recommend going with the lowest bid and awarding the contract to Professional 
Office Services.  The agreement would be effective immediately because work on the  
Winter 2020 edition of Currents would begin the week of December 9.   
 
The new service agreement is attached here for your approval.  City attorney, Kevin 
Rogers, has reviewed and approved.   
 
If you need further information please feel free to reach out to me at 319-268-5111.  
  
  
Attachment:  POS Professional Office Services, Inc. Service Agreement 

 Professional Office Services Woolverton  McKenna 

16 page $4411 $4505 $14,512 
20 page $5211 $5689 $17,415 
24 page $5964 $6540 $21,285 
28 page $6716 $7864 $24,187 
Fold out option $1107–1729 (dependent on 

# of other pages) 
$1400 N/A 

Proof corrections $0 $10 per page $0 

97

ITEM 10.



 

Service Agreement 
Print and Marketing Collateral  

This service agreement is entered into between Professional Office Services, Inc., located at 2757 Burton Avenue/P.O. Box 450, 
Waterloo, IA 50704 and the Customer named below. The agreement shall take effect on the date of execution. 

 

 

1 Terms of Service 
1.1 Professional Office Services, Inc. (POS) agrees to offer products and services as specified in the customer’s RFP. 
1.2 Services rendered by third parties are exclusive from POS and subject to the terms of the agreements made directly 

between the company and the third party. 
1.3 POS uses customer samples in its marketing materials. To request that samples not be included please indicate your 

preference on proof approval forms or make known by contacting POS at info@poscorp.com.  
1.4 POS agrees to comply with all terms specified in the Customer’s request for proposal. 

 

2 Warranty 
2.1 EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED HEREIN AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, POS 

EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND GUARANTEES WITH RESPECT 
TO THE SERVICES PROVIDED, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ARISING BY LAW, CUSTOM, PRIOR ORAL OR WRITTEN 
STATEMENTS, OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO REPRESENTATION OR OTHER AFFIRMATION OF FACT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, STATEMENTS REGARDING CAPACITY, SUITABILITY FOR USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES, NOT 
CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE A WARRANTY BY POS. 

2.2     
Neither party is liable for any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement due to any event beyond its 
reasonable control including an act of god, inclement weather, flood, lightning, fire, industrial action the act or omission of 
any government, terrorism, war, military operations or riot. 

3 Payment Terms 
3.1 Customer agrees to pay all charges incurred for services.  Charges incurred are net due upon receipt. A service charge of 

1.5% may be applied to amounts 30 days past the date of invoice.  This shall not exceed more than 5% annually. 
3.2 A credit hold may be placed on Customer accounts when a 60 day balance is unpaid. Services will not be rendered until the 

60 day balance is paid in full. 
3.3  Pricing shall be as identified in the proposal. 

4 Termination of Service 
4.1 POS may refuse service or terminate this agreement given a 10 day notice if the customer does not adhere to payment 

terms.    
4.2 Customer may terminate this agreement prior to the initial 1 year term or during any subsequent term upon failure of POS 

to comply with terms of this agreement, including those requirements set forth in the Customer’s request for proposal. 
4.3 POS or the customer may terminate this agreement given a 30 day notice for any reason. 

5 Indemnity & Interpretation 

    5.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, POS agrees to pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless each of the Combined 
Municipal Utilities of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its appointed Trustees, and its Officers, Directors, Managers, Supervisors, and 
employees against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for 
any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against any of them by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury 
or death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with the work and/or services 
negligently provided by POS to any of the Municipal Utilities of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this 
agreement. 

98

ITEM 10.



5.2 POS agrees to maintain the Technology Errors and Omissions insurance and Privacy/Network Security (Cyber) liability insurance 
coverage as required by Customer’s RFP, attached as Schedule B. 

5.3 This Agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of the State of Iowa. 

Signatures 

CUSTOMER:       PROFESSIONAL OFFICE SERVICES 

ADDRESS:         ADDRESS:     2757 BURTON AVE/PO BOX 450   

         WATERLOO, IA 50703    

               

EMAIL:          
(TO RECEIVE COPY OF AGREEMENT) 

 

SIGNATURE:        SIGNATURE:       

NAME:         NAME:  MATT BIGLER     

TITLE:         TITLE:  VICE PRESIDENT OF SALES    

DATE: ________________________________   DATE: ________________________________  

 

 
 

 

 

 

99

ITEM 10.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Jim Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: November 26, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Agreement with The Davenport Group for Migration of Firehouse Data 

 

It has become an increasing challenge to have a consistent system of record for billing 
of commercial inspections and code enforcement of rental housing.  We believe that 
LAMA (The Davenport Group’s Land Management software) will be a more viable 
solution for these challenges. We believe that moving these processes in to LAMA 
aligns with our goal to have better system integration, less redundant data, and will 
move us to the ultimate goal of having a history of each address in one system.    
 
We have worked with The Davenport group to plan the details needed for the migration 
and system set up. Our goal is to implement rental inspections in January 2020 and 
follow up with commercial inspections when they begin in the spring.   We recommend 
approving the change order.   
 
The attached document includes three parts the Change order to the original 
agreement, the tasks that will be completed with estimated timelines, the current rate 
schedule and the original resolution and agreement.  City attorney, Kevin Rogers, has 
reviewed and approved the change order.    
 
If you need further information please feel free to reach out to me at 319-268-5111.  
  
  
Attachment:  Change Order Number One to Agreement for the Installation and Use of 
Lama Software 

100

ITEM 11.



CHANGE ORDER NUMBER ONE TO THE AGREEMENT  

FOR THE INSTALLATION AND USE OF LAMA SOFTWARE 

 BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS AND THE DAVENPORT GROUP USA, LTD. 

 

This Change Order, being Change Order Number One, is made and entered into on the date below, by 

and between the City of Cedar Falls, an Iowa municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City,” 

and The Davenport Group USA, Ltd, hereinafter referred to as “Davenport” for additional services  

beyond those contemplated in the original agreement for the installation of Land Management 

Software, hereinafter known as “LAMA,” and services related thereto as spelled out in the original 

contract of August 1, 2016. 

Whereas, on or around November 13, 2019 the City decided it desired to pursue configuring LAMA to 

receive rental housing data and business occupancy related to annual fire protection inspections, 

undertake related data migration and testing, train users on the new functionality, and receive 

assistance from Davenport with going live on the addition. The scope includes one day of training on the 

new functionality and one day of go-live assistance; these events to involve one trip and two 

consecutive days. 

Whereas, Davenport estimates that the above services, which are more fully set out in an email from 

Jerry Davenport to Julie Sorensen on October 29, 2019, will be billed at Davenport’s current hourly 

rates, set out as Attachment B, and is estimated to cost Twelve Thousand Four Hundred ($12,400.00) 

Dollars, with a contingency of Two Thousand Four Hundred Eighty ($2,480.00) Dollars to cover 

unexpected costs in travel, unexpected problems in data migration, the decision to add an extra day of 

training if the parties deem it necessary, and other events or situations not addressed in Attachment A. 

Now, therefore, the Agreement shall be amended as follows: 

Davenport shall undertake the services as set out above and more fully described in the email noted 

above, which is attached, as Exhibit A, and complete the same within 90 days from contract execution, 

assuming no delays on the City’s part.  The City shall compensate Davenport for said work consistent 

with the above, the amount to be invoiced on a monthly basis as work is completed. 

The original contract dated August 1, 2016, attached as Exhibit C, is hereby ratified and confirmed 

except as expressly amended in this Change Order Number One. 

 

  

101

ITEM 11.



Executed this the __ day of ___________, 2019. 

 
The Davenport Group USA, Ltd. 
Crystal Lake, IL 50014 
Dated:  November 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________ 
Jerry P Davenport, President 
 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Dated:  ______________ 
 

 

 

By: _________________________ 

James P Brown, Mayor  

102

ITEM 11.



Attachment A 

 

Email: 

From:  Jerry P Davenport 

To:  Julie Sorensen 

Dated:  October 29, 2019 

 

….. 

So I am giving you a quote for configuring LAMA to receive rental housing data, undertaking a data migration and 

testing, and training users, and assisting in go-live. 

And you want a breakout for commercial versus residential.  I assume that multifamily is commercial. 

 

1. Analyze existing data structure in Firehouse and configure LAMA to receive the data from 
Firehouse.  ($1,200)  (2 days) (save $200 if we can ignore residential) 

2. Create a Test Database in DG Cloud for Development and Testing. Create user account for City review. 
($1,200)  (2 days) (no savings for commercial only) 

3. Design, develop, and Code the Data Migration model ($3,000)  (one week) (save $400 if we can ignore 
residential) 

4. Migrate the data into the Test Database; check for problems; revise and rerun if necessary. ($1,200 to 
$1,800)  (1-2 days) (no savings for commercial only) 

5. City to review the migration, and identify changes. (NC) (one week)  
6. Revise the Data Migration model; revise and rerun if necessary.  ($600 to $1,200)  (2 days) (no savings for 

commercial only) 
7. Create any forms and reports needed. ($1,200)  (one week) (no savings for commercial only) 
8. Receive an updated database on a Friday. (no savings for commercial only) 
9. Backup the existing database. (NC) 
10. Run the data migration into the live LAMA database over the weekend and monitor results; check for 

problems; restore, revise and rerun if necessary. ($600 to $1,800) (no savings for commercial only) 
11. Come on site to train staff on using program on Monday and stay with Go-Live through Tuesday ($2,400, 

plus $1,000 travel expenses)  (no savings for commercial only) 
 

Total $12,400 with 20% contingency. 

  

103

ITEM 11.



Attachment B 

 

The Davenport Group USA, Ltd 

 

Current Hourly Rates for Services, and Travel Costs 

 
 

Rate Sheet 
Effective July 1, 2019 

 

Position    Amount (per hour) 

 

Division Chief – Software Development  $200.00 

Division Chief – Functional Processes  $176.00 

Section Chiefs     $148.00 

Mobile Team Development Lead  $148.00 

Web Team Development Lead   $148.00 

Senior Business Analyst    $148.00 

Senior Project Manager    $136.00 

Documentation and Training Specialist  $136.00 

Support Specialists    $136.00 

Project Manager(s)    $124.00 

Configuration Specialist(s)   $124.00 

Foreign Language Consultant   $124.00 

 
Note:  These are our hourly rates for custom work or additional services.  Some proposals may have somewhat lower rates 

reflecting efficiencies more extensive scopes of work.  Support services for clients that are not on annual maintenance are set at 

150% of the above rates. 

 

Travel Costs (per person) 

 

Airfare    Simple reimbursable.  Economy with bag check. 

Parking   Simple reimbursable based on charges from airports. 

Auto Rental  Simple reimbursable for mid-size auto.  Includes gas charges. 

Vehicle Miles   $0.58 / mile (does not apply to auto rental) 

Lodging  Simple reimbursable, usually at Marriott Courtyard or similar motel/hotel. 

Food   Per diem at $65 per day ($15 breakfast; $20 lunch; $30 dinner)  

  

104

ITEM 11.



Attachment C 
 

105

ITEM 11.



106

ITEM 11.



107

ITEM 11.



108

ITEM 11.



109

ITEM 11.



110

ITEM 11.



111

ITEM 11.



112

ITEM 11.



113

ITEM 11.



114

ITEM 11.



115

ITEM 11.



116

ITEM 11.



117

ITEM 11.



118

ITEM 11.



119

ITEM 11.



120

ITEM 11.



121

ITEM 11.



122

ITEM 11.



123

ITEM 11.



124

ITEM 11.



125

ITEM 11.



126

ITEM 11.



127

ITEM 11.



128

ITEM 11.



129

ITEM 11.



130

ITEM 11.



131

ITEM 11.



132

ITEM 11.



133

ITEM 11.



134

ITEM 11.



135

ITEM 11.



136

ITEM 11.



137

ITEM 11.



138

ITEM 11.



139

ITEM 11.



140

ITEM 11.



141

ITEM 11.



142

ITEM 11.



143

ITEM 11.



144

ITEM 11.



145

ITEM 11.



146

ITEM 11.



147

ITEM 11.



148

ITEM 11.



149

ITEM 11.



150

ITEM 11.



151

ITEM 11.



152

ITEM 11.



153

ITEM 11.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Recreation Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council    
 
 FROM: Bruce Verink, Recreation Division Manager 
 
 DATE: November 26, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Contract with Red Cross to be a Shelter for Emergency Disaster  
 
 
Please find attached a contract, which the American Red Cross would like the City to 
review, approve, initial multiple areas and sign.  This would allow the Recreation and 
Fitness Center to be a shelter facility in case of a disaster emergency in our area. 
 
Red Cross records show that the previous agreement with Recreation and Fitness 
Center had expired and needs to be renewed.  It is my understanding that the City 
recently adopted a Multi-Jurisdictional Hazzard Mitigation Plan, which has the goal of 
providing shelter throughout the County.  Executing the attached agreement would 
support this plan as well. 
 
The attached contract was reviewed by legal services representing the City and meets 
with their approval.  This agreement was reviewed for proper insurance limits by staff 
and meets with their approval as well.  
 
The Recreation and Fitness Center membership would be inconvenienced should we 
become a temporary disaster site for a number of days or weeks, as a few of our 
amenities might not be available for their daily use.  However, our plan would be to 
remain open our regular service hours and to as many of our normal services as 
possible. 
 
Thank you for considering this request from the American Red Cross. 
 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, City Administrator 

 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

  
 

154

ITEM 12.



Facility Use Agreement American 

DCS JT DMWT Facility Use Agreement V!2.0 2017.06.29 

 

 

V RedCross 
 
 
 
 

 
The American National Red Cross ("Red Cross"), a non-profit corporation chartered by the United States Congress, 

provides services to individuals, families and communities when disasters strike. The disaster relief activities of the 

Red Cross are made possible by the American public who support the Red Cross with generous donations. The Red 

Cross's disaster services are also supported by facility owners who permit the Red Cross to use their buildings as 

shelters and other service delivery sites for disaster victims. This agreement is between the Red Cross and a facility 

owner ("Owner") so the Red Cross can use the facility to provide services during a disaster. This agreement only 

applies when Red Cross requests use of the facility and is managing the activity at the facility. 

 
 

 
Owner: 

Parties and Facility 

 

Full Name of Owner  City of Cedar Falls 

Address  220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

24-Hour Point of Contact 

Name and Title 
Work Phone 
Cell Phone 

 Bruce Verink   Rec. Div. Man.  O-319-273-8636,  C-319-464-2573               
 Brock Goos  Sports Program Supervisor  0-319-273-8636, C-319-269-7879                    
 Chris Schoentag Rec. Program Supervisor 0-319-273-8636, C-319-230-8431 

 Address for Official 
Notices (only if different 
from above address) 

 Recreation and Fitness Center 

 110 East 13th Street Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
 

Red Cross: 
 

Chapter  Name South and Eastern Iowa Chapter, Iowa Region 

Chapter Address 317 Ave SE Suite 205 

24-Hour Point of Contact 

Name and Title 
Work Phone 
Cell Phone 

Mary Flury 

Disaster Program Manager 

319-389-8538 

Address for Official 
Notices 

American Red Cross, Disaster Cycle Services Logistics, 8550 Arlington Blvd., Fairfax, 
VA22031 

 
 

Facility: 
 

Insert name and complete street address of building or, if multiple buildings, write "See attached facility list," and 
attach facility list, including complete street address of each building that is part of this agreement. If the Red Cross 
will use only a portion of a building, then describe the portion of the building that the Red Cross will use. 

 

     Recreation and Fitness Center 

     110 East 13th Street Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

155

ITEM 12.



Facility Use Agreement American 

DCS JT DMWT Facility Use Agreement V.2.0 2017.06.29 2 

 

 

 

Red Cross 
 
 

 
Terms and Conditions 

1.   Use of Facility:  Upon request and if feasible, Owner will permit the Red Cross to use and occupy the 

Facility on a temporary basis to conduct emergency, disaster-related activities. The Facility may be used for the 

following purposes (both parties must initial all that apply): 
 

 

Facility Purpose 
 

Owner Initials 
 

Red Cross Initials 
 

Service Center (Operations, Client Services, or Volunteer Intake) 
  

 

Storage of supplies 
  

 

Parking of vehicles 
  

 

Disaster Shelter 
BV  

 
 

2.    Facility Management: The Red Cross will designate a Red Cross official to manage the activities at the 
Facility ("Red Cross Manager"). The Owner will designate  a Facility Coordinator  to coordinate with the Red 
Cross Manager regarding the use of the Facility by the Red Cross. 

 
3.   Condition of Facility:  The Facility Coordinator and Red Cross Manager (or designee) will jointly conduct 

a survey of the Facility before it is turned  over to the Red Cross. They will use the first page of the Red Cross's 
Facility/Shelter Opening/Closing Form to record any existing damage  or conditions. The Facility 
Coordinator  will identify and secure all equipment  in the Facility that the Red Cross should  not use. The Red 
Cross will exercise reasonable care while using the Facility and will not modify the Facility without the Owner's 
express written approval. 

 
4.    Food Services  (This paragraph applies only when the Facility is used as a shelter or service center.): 

Upon  request  by the  Red Cross, and  if such  resources  are available, the Owner will make the food service 
resources of the Facility, including food, supplies,  equipment  and food service workers, available to feed the 
shelter  occupants. The Facility Coordinator  will designate a Food Service Manager to coordinate  meals at the 
direction of and in cooperation with the Red Cross Manager. The Food Service Manager will establish a feeding 
schedule and supervise meal planning and preparation. The Food Service Manager and Red Cross Manager will 
jointly conduct  a pre-occupancy inventory of the food and food service supplies  before the Facility is turned 
over to the Red Cross. When the Red Cross vacates the Facility, the Red Cross Manager and Facility Coordinator 
or Food Service Manager will conduct a post-occupancy inventory of the food and supplies used during the Red 
Cross's activities at the Facility. 

 

s.  Custodial Services: (This paragraph applies only when the Facility is used as a shelter or service center.): 
Upon request of the Red Cross and if such resources are available, the Owner will make its custodial resources, 
including supplies and workers, available to provide cleaning and sanitation services at the Facility. The Facility 
Coordinator  will designate  a Facility Custodian  to coordinate  the  these  services at  the  direction  of and  in 
cooperation with the Red Cross Manager. 

 
6.    Security/Safety: In coordination with the Facility Coordinator, the Red Cross Manager, as he or she deems 

necessary and appropriate,  will coordinate with law enforcement regarding any security and safety issues at the 
Facility. 

 
7·   Signage and Publicity:  The Red Cross may post signs identifying the  Facility as a site of Red Cross 

operations  in locations approved by the Facility Coordinator. The Red Cross will remove such signs when the 
Red Cross concludes its activities at the  Facility. The Owner will not issue press releases or other  publicity 
concerning the Red Cross's activities at the Facility without the written consent of the Red Cross Manager. The 
Owner will refer all media questions about the Red Cross activities to the Red Cross Manager. 

156

ITEM 12.



Facility Use Agreement American 

DCS JT DMWT Facility Use Agreement V.2.0 2017.06.29 3 

 

 

=...r:  Red Cross 
 
 
 
 

 
8.   Closing the Facility: The Red Cross will notify the Owner or Facility Coordinator of the date when the Red 

Cross wil1 vacate the Facility. Before the Red Cross vacates the Facility, the Red Cross Manager and Facility 
Coordinator will jointly conduct a post-occupancy inspection, using the second page of the Shelter/Facility 
Opening/Closing Form, to record any damage or conditions. 

 
9.   Fee (This paragraph does not apply when the Facility is used as a shelter. The Red Cross does not pay fees to 

use facilities as shelters.): Both parties must initial one of the two statements below: 
 

a.  Owner will not charge a fee for the use of the Facility. 
Owner initials:  BV Red Cross initials: 

 
b.  The Red Cross will pay$ -- per day/week/month (circle one) for the right to use and occupy 

the Facility. Owner initials:  BV             Red Cross initials:         _ 
 

10. Reimbursement: Subject to the conditions in paragraph 10(e) below, the Red Cross will reimburse the 
Owner for the following: 

 
a.  Damage to the Facility or other propertiJ of Owner , reasonable wear and tear excepted, resulting 

from the  operations of the  Red Cross. Reimbursement for facility damage wil1  be based  on 
replacement at actual cash value. The Red Cross, in consultation with the Owner,  wiU select from 
bids from at least three reputable contractors. The Red Cross is not responsible for storm damage 
or other damage caused by the disaster. 

 
b.  Reasonable costs associated with custodial and food service personnel and supplies which would 

not have been incurred but for the Red Cross's use of the Facility. The Red Cross will reimburse at 
per-hour, straight-time rate for wages actually incurred but will not reimburse for (i) overtime or 
(ii) costs of salaried staff. 

 
c. Reasonable, actual, out-of-pocket costs for the utilities indicated below, to the extent that such 

costs would not have been incurred but for the Red Cross's use of the Facility. (Both parties must 
initial all utilities that may be reimbursed by the Red Cross): 

 
 Owner Initials Red Cross Initials 
Water BV  
Gas BV  
Electricity BV  
Waste Disposal BV  

 
 

d.  The Owner will submit any request for reimbursement to the Red Cross within 60 days after the 

occupancy of the  Red Cross ends. Any request for  reimbursement  must be accompanied by 

supporting invoices. Any request for reimbursement for personnel costs must be accompanied by a 

list of the personnel with the dates and hours worked. 
 

e.   If the disaster is a Federally-declared disaster and Owner is a municipal or state government entity, 

then  the  Owner will work with  appropriate  emergency management  agencies to  seek  cost 

reimbursement through the Federal Emergency Management Agency's program for administering 

Public Assistance Category B under the Robert T. Stafford Act. The Red Cross is not obligated to 

reimburse the Owner for costs covered by Public Assistance Category B. 

157

ITEM 12.



DCS JT DMWT Facility Use Agreement V.2.0 2017.06.29 4 

Facility Use Agreement American 
...' ./ Red Cross 

 

 

 
 
 

11.   Insurance:  The Red Cross shall carry insurance  coverage in the amounts of at least $1,ooo,ooo  per 

occurrence for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability. The Red Cross shall also carry Workers' 

Compensation coverage with statutory  limits for the  jurisdiction within which the facility is located and 

$1,ooo,ooo in Employers' Liability. 

 
12. Indemnification:  The Red Cross shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Owner against any legal 

liability, including reasonable attorney fees, in respect to claims for bodily injury, death, and property damage 

arising from the negligence of the Red Cross during the use of the Facility. 

 
13. Term: The term of this agreement begins on the date of the last signature below and ends 30 days after 

written notice by either party. 
 

 
 

 
 

Owner (Legal Name) 

The American National Red Cross 

South and Eastern Iowa Chanter. Iowa  Region 

(Legal Name) 
 

 
By (Signature) By (Signature) 

 
Mary Flury 

Name (Printed)  Name (Printed) 

 
Disaster Program Manager   

Title Title 
 

 
 

Date Date 

158

ITEM 12.



   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  November 15, 2019  

Re: Leads Online Contract 

Leads Online is a software package that tracks pawned merchandise nationwide. Many 
agencies across the country use this service, including Waterloo and Black Hawk County. 
Pawned items are recorded in the Leads Online database and are able to be searched by 
law enforcement who subscribe to the service. This service provides us with the ability to 
determine if stolen merchandise is pawned and who pawned the merchandise from 
anywhere in the US. Many agencies have been able to solve cases by locating the 
merchandise in other cities pawn shops. All the pawned records in Cedar Falls would be 
entered into the system and we would be allowed to search for stolen items in Cedar Falls 
nationwide. The cost of a yearly contract is $4,870.00. I recommend approval of this 
contract.  

159

ITEM 13.



160

ITEM 13.



161

ITEM 13.



162

ITEM 13.



163

ITEM 13.



164

ITEM 13.



165

ITEM 13.



166

ITEM 13.



167

ITEM 13.



168

ITEM 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: November 20, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project  
  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1st Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 
project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The road construction will 
take place in 2019-2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four 
lane to a five lane facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) 
properties and partial acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Attached is the Claim for Relocation Reimbursement for Parcel 71. Staff recommends that the 
City Council state their support in approving the Claim for Relocation Reimbursements. 
 
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Director 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

169

ITEM 14.



170

ITEM 14.



171

ITEM 15.



172

ITEM 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: November 25, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
  2019 Engineering Services 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 10A 

West Viking Road Reconstruction from Production Dr to South Union Rd 
– Trail Infill Hudson Road to Production Drive 

  City Project No. RC-362-3212 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 10A to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 
Engineering Services. This supplemental agreement includes the design of a 10-ft wide 
recreational trail to accompany the West Viking Road Improvements Project, as 
described in Supplemental Agreement No. 10, from Production Drive to Hudson Road. 
The agreement includes the design of the trail along the north side of West Viking Road, 
design of a curb and gutter section along West Viking Road and storm sewer design.  
  
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the 2019 Engineering Services on December 3, 2018.  Funding for 
the Supplemental Agreement #10A will be provided by the Industrial Park TIF funds in 
the amount of $37,200. This project is included in the City of Cedar Falls’ Capital 
Improvements Program. 
 
The Department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 10A with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the design of the 
Recreational Trail Infill.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

Shane Graham, Planning 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

173

ITEM 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197` 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 10A 
 

2019 Engineering Services 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: RC-362-3212 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (CLIENT), 
and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated December 3, 2018 for the 
municipal engineering support services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include Scope of 
Services and Compensation for additional items required as a part of the 2019 Engineering Services, 
 
WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is designing an Industrial Park development for the CLIENT, which has led 
to the need for preliminary transportation and utility planning within this corridor, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement by adding 
the following items: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The CONSULTANT shall provide Professional Services to design and develop construction 
documents to construct additional 10-foot wide recreational trail to accompany the West Viking Road 
Improvements Project, as described in Supplemental Agreement No. 10, from Production Drive to 
Hudson Road. The scope of services herein are based on the design of a 10-foot wide recreational 
trail along the north side of West Viking Road, the design of a curb and gutter section along West 
Viking Road and storm sewer design. 
 

III. COMPENSATION 
 

The Compensation is hereby amended to include the following fees: 
 
a. PHASE 1 SERVICES 

Additional compensation for Phase 1 Services as outlined in Article I shall be hourly, not to 
exceed, as follows: 
 

Task Fee 
Contract Management $0 
Survey, Field, and Other Services $7,500 
Traffic Study $0 
Functional Design and Concept $3,100 
Preliminary Design (30%) $8,900 

Total $19,500 
 

  

174

ITEM 16.



175

ITEM 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: November 26, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Renewal of the College Hill Self-Supported Municipal Improvement 

  District (SSMID) 

______________________________________________________________________ 

PETITIONER: College Hill Partnership (Lead Agency) 

LOCATION:   College Hill Commercial District 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Evaluative Report for the Cedar Falls City Council on the Merit and Feasibility of 
Renewing the College Hill Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District 

 
PROPOSAL 
 
In accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 386, the College Hill Partnership has submitted 
a petition to the City of Cedar Falls for the renewal of the College Hill Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID). The purpose for the creation of the College 
Hill SSMID is to provide funding to pay the ongoing administrative and support costs for 
the services and functioning of the College Hill Partnership, which develops and 
encourages retail businesses by way of promotion and support for existing businesses, 
area improvements, and for healthy growth and development consistent with the long 
term goals for the College Hill business district.  
 
Attached is the memo and petition submitted by the College Hill Partnership. The 
requirement for approval of a SSMID is support by petition from a minimum of 25% of 
the unique property owners representing 25% of the total valuation of the District. The 
Partnership submitted signatures from over 40% of the total number of unique property 
owners, which represent over 50% of the total valuation within the area covered by the 
SSMID, so their petition meets the threshold for renewal of the SSMID. 
 
The self-imposed tax upon property within the SSMID area will remain the same at 
$2.75 per $1000 of net taxable valuation per year, commencing with the levy for tax 
collection in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and continuing for four additional 

176

ITEM 17.



years ending June 30, 2025. All tax revenue collected from properties subject to the 
additional tax will be deposited into the College Hill Self-Supported Municipal 
Improvement District Fund for the operational purposes of the College Hill Partnership 
as stated above. It should be noted that residential property within the District is not 
subject to the additional tax.   
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 
 
This memorandum serves as the Evaluative Report for City Council on the Merit and 
Feasibility of the College Hill Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District. The 
following attachments are supporting documentation used in the development of this 
Evaluative Report:  
 

 A letter from the College Hill Partnership requesting renewal of the SSMID with a 
summary of the necessary signatures of support received to meet the State 
requirements for renewal of the SSMID;  

 

 A spreadsheet that includes all 22 commercial property owners who are located 
within the boundaries of the SSMID and subject to the additional tax.  Those 
deedholders highlighted in the spreadsheet are those who have signed the 
petition of support. The spreadsheet indicates both the percentage of unique 
property owners who have signed the petition and the percentage of valuation 
those properties represent within the SSMID; 

  

 Copies of the signed petitions; 
 

 Map illustrating the location and boundaries of the SSMID.  
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission approves and endorses this Evaluative Report on 
the Merit and Feasibility of the Renewal of the College Hill Self-Support Municipal 
Improvement District and recommends that the City Council proceeds to set public 
hearing for consideration of the same.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMMISSION ACTIONS 
 
11/20/19 Meeting - Chair Holst introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided 

background information. She explained that the College Hill Partnership 
submitted a petition for renewal of the SSMID. The purpose of the district is to 
support the ongoing administrative functions and costs for the Partnership, which 
promotes and supports existing businesses, area improvements, and advocates 
for healthy growth and development consistent with the long term goals for the 
College Hill business district. Every five years the Partnerships must submit a 
new petition indicating support from at least 25% of the unique property owners 
representing at least 25% of the assessed value of commercial property within 
the SSMID District. State Code requires that the City Council receive the petition 

177

ITEM 17.



and refer it to the Planning and Zoning Commission for evaluation. Ms. Howard 
noted that the tax for the SSMID will remain the same. Since the petition 
submitted by the Partnership exceeds the minimum threshold of support per 
State Law, Staff recommends approval of the petition for renewal of the SSMID. 

 
 Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The 

motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch, 
Prideaux, and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
 

178

ITEM 17.



179

ITEM 17.



180

ITEM 17.



181

ITEM 17.



182

ITEM 17.



183

ITEM 17.



184

ITEM 17.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 25, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Agreement for Private Development – Prestige WW, L.L.C. 
    
 
Staff would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for December 16, 2019 to 
address a proposed Agreement for Private Development with Prestige WW, L.L.C. The 
proposed project would consist of the rehabilitation of 3,600 (main base) square feet of 
commercial space on the first floor of the building, and 3,600 square feet of residential 
space on the second floor of the building. Additional information pertaining to this 
project and corresponding agreement terms will be provided to City Council prior to the 
public hearing.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
  
 
         
        
 
 
 

185

ITEM 18.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO 

CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, AND PRESTIGE WW, L.L.C. 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 7418, adopted November 24, 1986, and amended by 

Amendment No. 1, approved by Resolution No. 12,795 on May 14, 2001, by Amendment No. 2, 

approved by Resolution No. 18,165 on July 16, 2012, by Amendment No. 3, approved by Resolution 

No. 18,837 on November 11, 2013, by Amendment No. 4, approved by Resolution 20,864 on December 

18, 2017, and by Amendment No. 5, approved by Resolution 21,367 on December 17, 2018, this 

Council found and determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be 

designated as an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan" or “Urban Renewal Plan”) for the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or "Urban Renewal Area") described therein, which 

Plan, as amended, is on file in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Area be redeveloped as part of the overall 

redevelopment area covered by said Plan; and 

 

WHERAS, the City has received a proposal from Prestige WW, L.L.C. (the "Developer"), in the 

form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") by and between the City and 

the Developer, pursuant to which, among other things, the Developer would agree to construct certain 

Minimum Improvements (as defined in the Agreement) on certain real property located within the 

Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area as defined and legally described in the Agreement 

and consisting of the rehabilitation of 3,600 (main base) square feet of commercial space on the first 

floor of the building, and 3,600 square feet of residential space on the second floor of the building, 

together with all related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed Agreement; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City will make up to five (5) consecutive 

annual payments of Economic Development Grants to Developer consisting of 100% of the Tax 

Increments pursuant to Iowa Code Section 403.19 and generated by the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements, the cumulative total for all such payments not to exceed the lesser of $42,897, or the 

186

ITEM 18.



amount accrued under the formula outlined in the proposed Agreement for Private Development, under 

the terms and following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, one of the obligations of the Developer relates to employment retention and/or 

creation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize cities to 

make grants for economic development and blight remediation in furtherance of the objectives of an 

urban renewal project and to appropriate such funds and make such expenditures as may be necessary to 

carry out the purposes of said Chapter, and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the Agreement is in the best interests of the City 

and the residents thereof and that the performance by the City of its obligations thereunder is a public 

undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that 

the Agreement and the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic 

development and blight remediation activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 

15A and 403 of the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, neither the Urban Renewal Law nor any other Code provision sets forth any 

procedural action required to be taken before said economic development activities can occur under the 

Agreement, and pursuant to Section 364.6 of the Code of Iowa, it is deemed sufficient if the action 

hereinafter described be taken and the City Clerk publish notice of the proposal and of the time and 

place of the meeting at which the Council proposes to take action thereon and to receive oral and/or 

written objections from any resident or property owner of said City to such action; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development with the 

Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 16th day of December, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Prestige WW, L.L.C., on certain terms as set forth in the proposed Agreement.  A copy 

of the proposed Agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is 

hereby directed to publish said notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

187

ITEM 18.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

188

ITEM 18.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 25, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Agreement for Private Development – River Place Properties II, L.C. 
    
 
Staff would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for December 16, 2019 to 
address a proposed Agreement for Private Development with River Place Properties II, 
L.C. The proposed project would consist of the construction of a new approximate 
27,709 square foot commercial/office building. The building will have a minimum 
valuation of $7,450,000.00, with construction to start in the fall of 2019. Additional 
information pertaining to this project and corresponding agreement terms will be 
provided to City Council prior to the public hearing.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

189

ITEM 19.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO 

CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, AND RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES II, L.C. 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 7418, adopted November 24, 1986, and amended by 

Amendment No. 1, approved by Resolution No. 12,795 on May 14, 2001, by Amendment No. 2, 

approved by Resolution No. 18,165 on July 16, 2012, by Amendment No. 3, approved by Resolution 

No. 18,837 on November 11, 2013, by Amendment No. 4, approved by Resolution 20,864 on December 

18, 2017, and by Amendment No. 5, approved by Resolution 21,367 on December 17, 2018, this 

Council found and determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be 

designated as an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan" or “Urban Renewal Plan”) for the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or "Urban Renewal Area") described therein, which 

Plan, as amended, is on file in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Area be redeveloped as part of the overall 

redevelopment area covered by said Plan; and 

 

WHERAS, the City has received a proposal from River Place Properties II, L.L.C. (the 

"Developer"), in the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") by and 

between the City and the Developer, pursuant to which, among other things, the Developer would agree 

to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined in the Agreement) on certain real property 

located within the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area as defined and legally described 

in the Agreement and consisting of the construction of an approximately 27,709 square foot 

commercial/office building, together with all related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed 

Agreement; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City will make up to five (5) consecutive 

annual payments of Economic Development Grants to Developer consisting of 100% of the Tax 

Increments pursuant to Iowa Code Section 403.19 and generated by the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements, the cumulative total for all such payments not to exceed the lesser of $938,187.00, or the 

190

ITEM 19.



amount accrued under the formula outlined in the proposed Agreement for Private Development, under 

the terms and following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, one of the obligations of the Developer relates to employment retention and/or 

creation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize cities to 

make grants for economic development and blight remediation in furtherance of the objectives of an 

urban renewal project and to appropriate such funds and make such expenditures as may be necessary to 

carry out the purposes of said Chapter, and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the Agreement is in the best interests of the City 

and the residents thereof and that the performance by the City of its obligations thereunder is a public 

undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that 

the Agreement and the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic 

development and blight remediation activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 

15A and 403 of the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, neither the Urban Renewal Law nor any other Code provision sets forth any 

procedural action required to be taken before said economic development activities can occur under the 

Agreement, and pursuant to Section 364.6 of the Code of Iowa, it is deemed sufficient if the action 

hereinafter described be taken and the City Clerk publish notice of the proposal and of the time and 

place of the meeting at which the Council proposes to take action thereon and to receive oral and/or 

written objections from any resident or property owner of said City to such action; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development with the 

Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 16th day of December, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and River Place Properties II, L.C., on certain terms as set forth in the proposed Agreement.  

A copy of the proposed Agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk 

is hereby directed to publish said notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

191

ITEM 19.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

192

ITEM 19.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 25, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Sale of Lot 1 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar 
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 2.7 acres more or less). 

    
 
Staff would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for December 16, 2019 to 
address the proposed transfer of the above referenced City owned real estate to The 
Vault, L.L.C. The proposed project would consist of a new 27,500 square foot 
storage/office facility to be constructed along the east side of Production Drive, just 
south of West Viking Road in the West Viking Road Industrial Park. Additional 
information pertaining to the land transaction and the Agreement for Private 
Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

193

ITEM 20.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 

ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND THE VAULT, L.L.C.; AND 

(2) TO CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE 

TO THE VAULT, L.L.C., PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from The 

Vault, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement 

for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and The Vault, 

L.L.C. on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described as consisting of all that 

certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of 

Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 1, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa. (Contains 2.70 acres more or less). 

 

and  

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would be 

established at an amount not less than $1,427,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2031; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 

of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 16th day of December, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 

194

ITEM 20.



Falls, Iowa, and The Vault, L.L.C., and to consider conveyance of the Development Property to the 

Developer on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed agreement is 

on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said 

notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

195

ITEM 20.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

196

ITEM 20.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 25, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan 

 
The College Hill Urban Renewal Plan was originally adopted in 2011, and has provided 
financing for a number of development projects since its adoption. This plan was drafted 
prior to the State Code change in 2013 which requires urban renewal plans to have 
general or specific projects listed within them for potential reimbursement using urban 
renewal (TIF) funds.  
 
For the proposed Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan (copy 
attached as Exhibit 1 to Resolution), the plan is being changed in format to match the 
current format of the other urban renewal plans, which show general or specific projects 
and budget amounts. The project information can be found in Section 1, Future 
Development Agreements, Section 2, Land Acquisitions, Section 3, Capital 
Projects/Public Infrastructure Projects, and Section 4, Fees, Costs, and Expenses. 
These sections identify projects that may be funded through the College Hill Urban 
Renewal Plan Amendment No.1. Several projects within the Plan to note is a visioning 
and zoning code update for the College Hill neighborhood, including that portion 
included in the College Hill Urban Renewal Area; installation of public security cameras; 
wayfinding signage; and parking lot restoration projects for public parking lots within the 
Urban Renewal Area. 
 
With the above information noted, a copy of the proposed Amendment No. 1 to the 
College Hill Urban Renewal Plan (Exhibit 1 to the Resolution) is attached for your review.  
This Amendment No. 1 and related documents were drafted by City staff in coordination 
with the Ahlers Law Office in Des Moines. 
 
It is important to keep in mind that the projects and associated cost estimates are 
maximum expenditures for potential projects that may occur within the College Hill 
Urban Renewal Area over the next few years.  To the best of our ability, staff is trying to 
identify all potential future projects to minimize the need for constant plan amendments 
(hopefully for the next 12-18 months) that require significant amounts of staff time and 
legal expense. 
 
 
 197

ITEM 21.



The first step in the City Council review process of the Amendment No. 1 to the College 
Hill Urban Renewal Plan is to set a date of Consultation Session with local taxing 
entities and a date for public hearing.  Staff recommends that City Council adopt the 
following attached Resolution prepared by the Ahlers Law Office: 
 

1. Resolution setting dates of a consultation and a public hearing on a proposed 
Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan in the City of Cedar 
Falls, State of Iowa. 

 
The Consultation Session (required by law) with the local taxing entities will be 
scheduled for December 10, 2019 while the date of Public Hearing will be set for 
January 6, 2020. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know 
 
Xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Nathan Overberg, Ahlers Law Office 

198

ITEM 21.



 

ITEM TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

December 2, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 

 

College Hill Urban Renewal Plan 

 

  Resolution setting dates of a consultation and a public hearing on a proposed 

Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan in the City of Cedar Falls, 

State of Iowa. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

 

 

1. The above agenda items should be included, along with any other agenda items, in the 

meeting agenda.  The agenda should be posted on a bulletin board or other prominent 

place easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the 

principal office of the body holding the meeting.  If no such office exists, the notice must 

be posted at the building in which the meeting is to be held. 

2. If you do not now have a bulletin board designated as above mentioned, designate one 

and establish a uniform policy of posting your notices of meeting and tentative agenda. 

3. Notice and tentative agenda must be posted at least 24 hours prior to the commencement 

of the meeting. 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 21, 

CODE OF IOWA, AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

 

199

ITEM 21.



i 

December 2, 2019 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 

session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M., on 

the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the following 

named Council Members: 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

* * * * * * * * 

200

ITEM 21.



ii 

Council Member ____________________ then introduced the following proposed 

Resolution entitled "RESOLUTION SETTING DATES OF A CONSULTATION AND A 

PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE COLLEGE HILL 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA", and 

moved that the same be adopted.  Council Member ____________________ seconded the 

motion to adopt.  The roll was called, and the vote was: 

 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the Resolution duly adopted as follows: 

 

201

ITEM 21.



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATES OF A CONSULTATION 

AND A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

NO. 1 TO THE COLLEGE HILL URBAN RENEWAL PLAN IN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 17,348, adopted February 14, 2011, this Council found 

and determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be designated as 

an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the College Hill Urban 

Renewal Plan (the "Plan" or "Urban Renewal Plan") for the College Hill Urban Renewal Area 

(the "Area" or "Urban Renewal Area") described therein, which Plan is on file in the office of the 

Recorder of Black Hawk County; and 

WHEREAS, this Urban Renewal Area currently includes and consists of: 

That part of Section 13 and that part of Section 14, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth P.M. in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa 

beginning at the intersection of the West line of College Street with the South line 

of Seerley Boulevard; thence North along said West line of College Street to the 

South line of West Twenty-third Street; thence West along said South line of 

West Twenty-third Street to the Southerly extension of the West line of Campus 

Street; thence North along said West line of Campus Street and its Southerly 

extension to the North line of West Twentieth Street; thence East along said North 

line of West Twentieth Street to the East line of Merner Avenue; thence South 

along said East line of Merner Avenue to the North line of West Twentieth Street; 

thence East along said North line of West Twentieth Street to the West line of 

College Street; thence North along said West line of College Street to the 

Westerly extension of the North line of West Twentieth Street; thence East along 

said North line of West Twentieth Street and its Westerly extension to the East 

line of Olive Street; thence South along said East line of Olive Street to the South 

line of Seerley Boulevard; thence West along said South line of Seerley 

Boulevard to the point of beginning. 

 

WHEREAS, City staff has caused there to be prepared a form of Amendment No. 1 to the 

Plan ("Amendment No. 1" or "Amendment"), a copy of which has been placed on file for public 

inspection in the office of the City Clerk and which is incorporated herein by reference, the 

purpose of which is to update and/or add urban renewal projects to be undertaken within the 

Urban Renewal Area; and 

 WHEREAS, it is desirable that the area be redeveloped as part of the overall 

redevelopment covered by the Plan, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, this proposed Amendment No. 1 adds no new land to the Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes require the City Council to notify all affected taxing 

entities of the consideration being given to the proposed Amendment No. 1 and to hold a 

202

ITEM 21.



2 

consultation with such taxing entities with respect thereto, and further provides that the 

designated representative of each affected taxing entity may attend the consultation and make 

written recommendations for modifications to the proposed division of revenue included as a 

part thereof, to which the City shall submit written responses as provided in Section 403.5, Code 

of Iowa, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Iowa statutes further require the City Council to hold a public hearing on 

the proposed Amendment No. 1 subsequent to notice thereof by publication in a newspaper 

having general circulation within the City, which notice shall describe the time, date, place and 

purpose of the hearing, shall generally identify the urban renewal area covered by the 

Amendment and shall outline the general scope of the urban renewal project under consideration, 

with a copy of the notice also being mailed to each affected taxing entity. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

Section 1. That the consultation on the proposed Amendment No. 1 required by Section 

403.5(2), Code of Iowa, as amended, shall be held on the December 10, 2019, in the Duke 

Young Conference Room, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 11:00 A.M., and the 

Economic Development Coordinator, or his delegate, is hereby appointed to serve as the 

designated representative of the City for purposes of conducting the consultation, receiving any 

recommendations that may be made with respect thereto and responding to the same in 

accordance with Section 403.5(2), Code of Iowa. 

Section 2. That the City Clerk is authorized and directed to cause a notice of such 

consultation to be sent by regular mail to all affected taxing entities, as defined in Section 

403.17(1), Code of Iowa, along with a copy of this Resolution and the proposed Amendment No. 

1, the notice to be in substantially the following form: 

203

ITEM 21.



3 

NOTICE OF A CONSULTATION TO BE HELD BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA AND ALL 

AFFECTED TAXING ENTITIES CONCERNING THE 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE COLLEGE HILL 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, STATE OF IOWA 

The City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa will hold a consultation with all affected taxing 

entities, as defined in Section 403.17(1), Code of Iowa, as amended, commencing at 11:00 A.M. 

on December 10, 2019, in the Duke Young Conference Room, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar 

Falls, Iowa concerning a proposed Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan 

for the College Hill Urban Renewal Area, a copy of which is attached hereto. 

Each affected taxing entity may appoint a representative to attend the consultation.  The 

consultation may include a discussion of the estimated growth in valuation of taxable property 

included in the Urban Renewal Area, the fiscal impact of the division of revenue on the affected 

taxing entities, the estimated impact on the provision of services by each of the affected taxing 

entities in the Urban Renewal Area, and the duration of any bond issuance included in the 

Amendment.  

The designated representative of any affected taxing entity may make written 

recommendations for modifications to the proposed division of revenue no later than seven days 

following the date of the consultation.  The Economic Development Coordinator, or his delegate, 

as the designated representative of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, shall submit a written 

response to the affected taxing entity, no later than seven days prior to the public hearing on the 

proposed Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan, addressing any 

recommendations made by that entity for modification to the proposed division of revenue. 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 

as provided by Section 403.5, Code of Iowa, as amended. 

Dated this __________ day of _______________, 2019. 

  

 

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

(End of Notice) 

204

ITEM 21.



4 

Section 3. That a public hearing shall be held on the proposed Amendment No. 1 before 

the City Council at its meeting which commences at 7:00 P.M. on January 6, 2020, in the 

Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Section 4. That the City Clerk is authorized and directed to publish notice of this public 

hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier, once on a date not less than four (4) nor more than 

twenty (20) days before the date of the public hearing, and to mail a copy of the notice by 

ordinary mail to each affected taxing entity, such notice in each case to be in substantially the 

following form: 

205

ITEM 21.



5 

(One publication required) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER APPROVAL 

OF A PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE COLLEGE 

HILL URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL 

AREA IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, will hold a public hearing 

before itself at its meeting which commences at 7:00 P.M. on January 6, 2020 in the Council 

Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consider adoption of a proposed 

Amendment No. 1 to the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan (the "Amendment") concerning an 

Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, which contains the land legally 

described as follows: 

That part of Section 13 and that part of Section 14, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth P.M. in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa 

beginning at the intersection of the West line of College Street with the South line 

of Seerley Boulevard; thence North along said West line of College Street to the 

South line of West Twenty-third Street; thence West along said South line of 

West Twenty-third Street to the Southerly extension of the West line of Campus 

Street; thence North along said West line of Campus Street and its Southerly 

extension to the North line of West Twentieth Street; thence East along said North 

line of West Twentieth Street to the East line of Merner Avenue; thence South 

along said East line of Merner Avenue to the North line of West Twentieth Street; 

thence East along said North line of West Twentieth Street to the West line of 

College Street; thence North along said West line of College Street to the 

Westerly extension of the North line of West Twentieth Street; thence East along 

said North line of West Twentieth Street and its Westerly extension to the East 

line of Olive Street; thence South along said East line of Olive Street to the South 

line of Seerley Boulevard; thence West along said South line of Seerley 

Boulevard to the point of beginning. 

 

A copy of the Amendment is on file for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk, 

City Hall, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

The City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa is the local public agency which, if such 

Amendment is approved, shall undertake the urban renewal activities described in such 

Amendment. 

The general scope of the urban renewal activities under consideration in the Amendment 

is to promote economic development and to rehabilitate, conserve and redevelop land, buildings 

and other improvements within such area through the elimination and containment of conditions 

of blight so as to improve the community through the establishment of effective land use 

controls, through use of an effective program of rehabilitation of existing buildings and 

elimination of those structures which cannot be economically rehabilitated, with a limited 

amount of acquisition, clearance, resale and improvement of land for various purposes specified 

in the Amendment.  To accomplish the objectives of the Amendment, and to encourage the 

206

ITEM 21.



6 

further economic development of the Urban Renewal Area, the Amendment provides that such 

special financing activities may include, but not be limited to, the making of loans or grants of 

public funds to private entities under Chapter 15A, Code of Iowa.  The City also may reimburse 

or directly undertake the installation, construction and reconstruction of substantial public 

improvements, including, but not limited to, street, water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer or other 

public improvements.  The City also may acquire and make land available for development or 

redevelopment by private enterprise as authorized by law.  The Amendment provides that the 

City may issue bonds or use available funds for purposes allowed by the Plan and that tax 

increment reimbursement of the costs of urban renewal projects may be sought if and to the 

extent incurred by the City.  The Amendment initially proposes specific public infrastructure or 

site improvements to be undertaken by the City, and provides that the Amendment may be 

amended from time to time. 

The proposed Amendment No. 1 would update and/or add urban renewal projects to be 

undertaken within the Urban Renewal Area.  The proposed Amendment adds no new land. 

Other provisions of the Plan not affected by the Amendment would remain in full force 

and effect. 

Any person or organization desiring to be heard shall be afforded an opportunity to be 

heard at such hearing. 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 

as provided by Section 403.5, Code of Iowa. 

Dated this __________ day of _______________, 2019. 

  

 

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

(End of Notice) 

207

ITEM 21.



7 

Section 5. That the proposed Amendment No. 1, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, for the 

Urban Renewal Area described therein is hereby officially declared to be the proposed 

Amendment No. 1 referred to in the notices for purposes of such consultation and hearing and 

that a copy of the Amendment shall be placed on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of December, 2019. 

  

 

 

  

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

 

Label the Amendment as Exhibit 1 (with all exhibits) and attach it to this Resolution. 

 

208

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  
to the 

COLLEGE HILL  
URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

 
for the 

  
COLLEGE HILL 

URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

College Hill Urban Renewal Plan – 2011 
Amendment No. 1 – 2020  

 
 
 
 
 
 

209

ITEM 21.



 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  
to the  

COLLEGE HILL URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) adopted the College Hill Urban Renewal Plan 
(“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”) for the College Hill Urban Renewal Area (the “Area” or 
“Urban Renewal Area”) to help promote economic development and redevelopment, 
including blight remediation, in the Area. The City is amending the Plan with the 
adoption of this Amendment No. 1 to the Plan (“Amendment” or “Amendment No. 1”) in 
order to update and add urban renewal projects to be undertaken within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 
 
Except as modified by this Amendment, the provisions of the original Urban Renewal 
Plan are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved and shall remain in full force and 
effect as provided herein.  In case of any conflict or uncertainty, the terms of this 
Amendment shall control.  
 

AREA DESIGNATION 
 
With the adoption of the original Plan, the City designated the Urban Renewal Area as 
an economic development area appropriate for the promotion of commercial 
development, as well as a blighted area appropriate for blight remediation and 
redevelopment. At the time of adopting the original Plan, the City found that the Urban 
Renewal Area was a blighted area due to vacant properties within the Area posing an 
ongoing safety concern and the age and condition of a substantial number of the 
existing structures in the Area, which were characterized as substandard or obsolete in 
terms of code compliance, aesthetic appearance, and due to deteriorated or 
deteriorating structures. As a whole, the City found that these conditions detracted from 
the functional unity, aesthetic appearance, safety, and economic potential of the Area 
and supported a finding of blight.  
 
This Amendment makes no change to the Area’s designation, and ratifies, confirms, 
and approves the original findings of the City with respect to designating the Area as a 
mixed area suitable for economic development and blight remediation. 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 

This Amendment makes no change to the boundaries of the Urban Renewal Area. For 
the reader’s convenience, the Urban Renewal Area is legally described in Exhibit A and 
is illustrated in Exhibit B.  

 

210

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

BASE VALUE 
 
The Urban Renewal Area has a previously established “base valuation” for the 
purposes of Tax Increment Financing (TIF). This Amendment makes no change to the 
established base values in the Urban Renewal Area. 

 
LAND USE PLAN 

 
The City has a general plan for the physical development of the City, as a whole, 
designated as the “Comprehensive Plan for the City of Cedar Falls,” adopted in May 
2012. The Urban Renewal Plan and this Amendment, including the urban renewal 
projects described herein, are in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The Amendment does not modify the City’s existing zoning policies or designations. 
 
The need, if any, for improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities, recreational 
and community facilities, or other public improvements within the Urban Renewal Area 
is set forth in the Urban Renewal Plan, as amended. As the Area develops, the need for 
public infrastructure extensions and upgrades will be evaluated and planned for by the 
City. 

 
PLAN OBJECTIVES 

 
Renewal activities are designed to provide opportunities, incentives, and sites to 
promote economic development, including new and expanded commercial development 
and to alleviate and remediate blighting conditions. More specific objectives for 
development within this Urban Renewal Area include: 
 

1. To reduce or eliminate blighting influences and to promote revitalization of 
existing retail/commercial properties.  

 
2. To stimulate through public action and commitment, private investment in 

new retail/commercial development. 
 
3. To plan for and provide sufficient land for commercial development in a 

manner that is efficient from the standpoint of providing municipal services 
and that encourages the creation and retention of jobs. 

 
4. To provide for the installation of public infrastructure, including gas, water, 

and communications infrastructure, and public facilities in the Urban 
Renewal Area, which ultimately contribute to the sound development of 
the entire City. 

 
5. To provide a more marketable and attractive investment climate through 

the use of various governmental incentives. 
 

211

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

6. To achieve a diversified, well-balanced economy providing a desirable 
standard of living, creating job opportunities, and strengthening the tax 
base. 

 
7. To encourage the redevelopment of previously blighted properties for 

retail, commercial, or residential purposes. 
 
8. To encourage harmonious growth consistent with the needs of the City, 

including the minimization of effects on neighboring residential properties.  
 
9. To develop a sound economic base that will serve as the foundation for 

future growth and development. 
 
10. To provide reimbursement of City personnel costs and other 

administrative and legal fees associated with the development and 
implementation of urban renewal projects within the Urban Renewal Area. 

 
TYPE OF RENEWAL ACTIVITIES 

 
To meet the objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan and to encourage the development 
of the Urban Renewal Area, the City intends to utilize the powers conferred under 
Chapter 403 and Chapter 15A, Code of Iowa. Activities may include: 
 

1. To undertake and carry out urban renewal projects through the execution 
of leases, contracts, and other instruments. 

 
2. To make or have made surveys, studies, and plans necessary for the 

implementation of the Urban Renewal Plan or specific urban renewal 
projects. 

 
3. To arrange for or cause to be provided the construction, relocation, or 

repair of public infrastructure, including but not limited to, streets, water, 
storm sewer, sanitary sewer, public utilities, sidewalks, street lights and 
signs, streetscaping and landscaping, or other related facilities and 
activities in connection with urban renewal projects. 

 
4. To acquire property through a variety of means (purchase, lease, option, 

contract, etc.) and to hold, clear, or prepare the property for 
redevelopment, or to dispose of property. 

 
5. To provide for the construction of specific site improvements such as 

grading and site preparation activities including site/soil reports and 
studies, access roads and parking, fencing, utility connections, and related 
activities. 

 

212

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

6. To make loans, forgivable loans, tax rebate payments, or other types of 
economic development grants or incentives to private persons or 
businesses for economic development or blight remediation purposes on 
such terms as may be determined by the City Council. 

 
7. To use tax increment financing to facilitate urban renewal projects, 

including, but not limited to, financing to achieve a more marketable and 
competitive land offering price and to provide for necessary physical 
improvements and infrastructure. 

 
8. To borrow money and to provide security therefor. 

 
9. To provide contributions and/or incentives for appropriate remediation, 

revitalization, redevelopment, and development projects. 
 
10. To use any or all other powers granted by the Urban Renewal Act to 

develop and provide for improved economic conditions for the City of 
Cedar Falls and the State of Iowa. 

 
Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise 
any lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15, Chapter 15A, Chapter 403, 
Chapter 427B, or any other provision of the Code of Iowa in furtherance in of the 
objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

 
Various urban renewal projects in the Urban Renewal Area were authorized prior to the 
date of this Amendment, and may be continuing. This Amendment makes no change to 
the previously authorized urban renewal projects.   
 

ELIGIBLE URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 
(Amendment No. 1) 

 
1. Future Development Agreements 
 
The City expects to consider requests for development agreements for projects that are 
consistent with this Plan, as amended, in the City’s sole discretion. The City expects to 
consider agreements that would lead to the creation and/or retention of jobs within the 
Area, or that contribute to the remediation and stabilization of blighted properties and 
return previously blighted properties to useful condition for public facilities or private 
development. 
 
Such agreements are unknown at this time, but based on past history, and dependent 
on development opportunities and climate, the City expects to consider a broad range of 
incentives as authorized by this Plan, including but not limited to, land, loans, grants, tax 

213

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

rebates, public infrastructure assistance, and other incentives. The costs of such 
development agreements are estimated not to exceed $2,000,000. 
 
2. Land Acquisitions 
 
The City expects to consider acquiring land in the Urban Renewal Area to 
accommodate future economic development, to promote blight remediation projects, or 
to facilitate the provision of public services in an efficient manner to support 
development in the Urban Renewal Area. These acquisitions are expected to occur over 
the life of the Area as development occurs. The costs of such land acquisitions are 
estimated not to exceed $1,500,000. 
 
3. Capital Improvement Projects/Public Infrastructure Projects 
 

Project 
Estimated 

Project Date 

Estimated 
Not to 

Exceed 

 
Rationale 

Sanitary sewer and other necessary 
infrastructure extensions within the 
Urban Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $2,000,000 Support economic 
development growth 
and redevelopment 
of blighted properties 
in the Area 

Construction of current or future 
public infrastructure within the Urban 
Renewal Area to include new and 
reconstructed roadways, alleys, 
sidewalks, parking lots or structures, 
recreation trails, lighting, or other 
public amenities in the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 
 

$4,000,000 Support economic 
development growth 
and redevelopment 
of blighted properties 
in the Area 

Other infrastructure tied to 
development and redevelopment, 
including but not limited to water, 
sanitary sewer, storm sewer, gas, 
electric, and communications in the 
Urban Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $1,500,000 Support economic 
development growth 
and redevelopment 
of blighted properties 
in the Area  

Construction, engineering, design, 
inspection costs, and all other 
related costs for potential roadway 
modifications within the Urban 
Renewal Area, including but not 
limited to intersection improvements 
or modifications, new roadways, 
turning lanes, medians, and other 

2019-2039 $1,750,000 Support economic 
development growth 
and redevelopment 
of blighted properties 
in the Area  

214

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

road related improvements. 

Streetscape, landscaping and public 
art installation along roadways within 
the Urban Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $500,000 Promote economic 
development growth 
and redevelopment 
of blighted properties 
within the Area 
through 
beautification efforts 

Wayfinding Signage, or other 
appropriate City signage within the 
Urban Renewal Area, along with 
ongoing maintenance, repair, or 
replacement of existing signage 
within the Urban Renewal Area.  

2019-2039 $50,000 Promote economic 
development growth 
and redevelopment 
of blighted properties 
within the Area 

Installation of public security 
cameras within the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

2019-2039 $300,000 Promote economic 
development growth 
and redevelopment 
of blighted properties 
within the Area by 
increasing safety for 
business owners, 
employees, and 
patrons within the 
Area. 

College Hill Parking Lot Restoration 
Project – Mill and overlay public 
parking lot G and public parking lot J 
located within the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

2021 $250,000 Remediate blighting 
conditions and 
provide a safe 
parking surface for 
vehicles within the 
Urban Renewal 
Area, in order to 
encourage 
commercial traffic. 

W. 22nd Street Realignment and 
Expansion Project – Realignment of 
the intersection of College Street 
and W. 22nd Street. 

2020-2021 $100,000 Remediate blighting 
conditions by 
aligning the 
intersection and 
providing an 
adequate street for 
functionality, safety 
and aesthetic 
improvements. 

College Hill Maintenance and 2019-2039 $500,000 Providing a safe 

215

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

Improvements Project – 
Improvements to streets, sidewalks, 
benches, landscaping, public art, 
and pedestrian amenities. 

environment for 
employees, visitors, 
and residents within 
the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

Pavement Markings – This project 
will identify marking driveway edges 
within the Urban Renewal Area. 

2021-2022 $10,000 To improve parking 
conditions within the 
Urban Renewal 
Area, which will 
remediate blighting 
conditions and 
encourage 
commercial traffic. 

Parking Lot Signage Improvements 
– This project will replace parking lot 
signage within the City-owned 
parking lots within the Urban 
Renewal Area. 

2020-2021 $10,000 To improve the 
visibility of public 
parking lots within 
the Urban Renewal 
Area, which will 
remediate blighting 
conditions and 
encourage 
commercial traffic. 

 Total $10,970,000 
(Estimated not 
to exceed) 

 

 
4.  Fees, Costs, and Expenses (for urban renewal projects and planning) 
  

Project 
Estimated 

Project Date 
Estimated Not to 

Exceed 

Legal Fees: 

Legal, consulting, recording, publication, and other 
miscellaneous fees associated with land 
acquisition and economic development projects 
occurring within the Urban Renewal Area. 

2019-2039 $250,000 

Personnel Costs and Other Administrative Expenses to Support Urban Renewal 
Projects and Planning: 

Staffing/Personnel related expenses including but 
not limited to salary and benefits incurred by 
Community Development Department and other 
City personnel tied to supporting economic 

2019-2039 $500,000 

216

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

development and urban renewal projects within the 
Urban Renewal Area. Plan Amendment preparation 
and administration included. 

Engineering, Planning, and Study Costs: 

Visioning and Zoning Code Update for the College 
Hill neighborhood, including the Urban Renewal 
Area. This project will include professional 
services related to developing a detailed vision 
plan for the properties within the Area and an 
associated zoning ordinance for the College Hill 
neighborhood and nearby areas. 

2019-2039 $250,000 
(The portion of the total 
project costs attributable 

to planning time and 
costs associated with 

properties in the Urban 
Renewal Area.)  

Planning, design, studies and associated costs for 
the development of land within the Urban Renewal 
Area.   

2019-2025 $250,000 

Traffic planning and studies tied to any roadway 
improvement projects. 

2019-2039 $250,000 

 Total $1,500,000 
(Estimated not to exceed) 

 
 
5.  Cedar Falls Utilities Projects 
 
The City may consider using TIF funds to help finance various utility relocations and/or 
extensions within the Urban Renewal Area, as the need arises. The City expects that it 
may enter into agreements with Cedar Falls Utilities to provide for the provision of gas, 
water, communication, and electric utilities infrastructure as economic development and 
growth continues in the Urban Renewal Area. The availability of gas, water, 
communication, and electric utilities are important to support economic development 
and private development of commercial, retail, and residential properties. Further, the 
provision of such utilities serves to remediate blighting conditions caused by the lack of 
utilities or utility infrastructure without sufficient capacity to serve the nearby properties. 
The extension of utility services pursuant to such agreements may take place over the 
life of the Area. The cost of these agreements to be reimbursed through tax increment 
financing is estimated not to exceed $4,000,000. 
  

FINANCIAL DATA 
 
Constitutional debt limit (as of July 1, 
2019): 

 $158,346,466 

Current general obligation debt:  $14,085,000 

A specific amount of actual debt to be incurred for the Eligible Urban Renewal Projects 
has not yet been determined. This document is for planning purposes only. The 

217

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

estimated project costs in this Plan are estimates only and will be incurred and spent 
over a number of years. In no event will the City’s constitutional debt limit be exceeded. 
The City Council will consider each project proposal on a case-by-case basis to 
determine if it is in the City’s best interest to participate before approving an urban 
renewal project or expense. It is further expected that such indebtedness, including 
interest on the same, may be financed in whole or in part with tax increment revenues 
from the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
Subject to the foregoing, it is estimated that the cost of the Eligible Urban Renewal 
Projects (Amendment No. 1) as described above will be approximately $19,970,000. 
This amount does not include financing costs, which will be incurred over the life of the 
Area. 
 

URBAN RENEWAL FINANCING 
 
The City intends to utilize various financing tools such as those described below to 
successfully undertake the proposed urban renewal actions.  The City has the statutory 
authority to use a variety of tools to finance physical improvements within the Area.  
These include: 
 

A. Tax Increment Financing. 
 

Under Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, urban renewal areas may 
utilize the tax increment financing mechanism to finance the costs of 
public improvements, economic development incentives, or other urban 
renewal projects.  Upon creation of a tax increment district within the Area, 
by ordinance, the assessment base is frozen and the amount of tax 
revenue available from taxes paid on the difference between the frozen 
base and the increased value, if any, is segregated into a separate fund 
for the use by the City to pay costs of the eligible urban renewal projects.  
Certain increased taxes generated by any new development, above the 
base value, are distributed to the taxing entities, if not requested by the 
City, and in any event upon the expiration of the tax increment district. 
 
The City may also determine to use tax increment financing to provide 
incentives such as cash grants, loans, tax rebates, or other incentives to 
developers or private entities in connection with the urban renewal 
projects identified in the Plan, as amended.  In addition, the City may 
determine to issue general obligation bonds, tax increment revenue bonds 
or such other obligations, or loan agreements for the purpose of making 
loans or grants of public funds to private businesses located in the Area 
for urban renewal projects.  Alternatively, the City may determine to use 
available funds for making such loans or grants or other incentives related 
to urban renewal projects.  In any event, the City may determine to use tax 
increment financing to reimburse the City for any obligations or advances. 
 

218

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

B. General Obligation Bonds. 
 

Under Division III of Chapter 384 and Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa, 
the City has the authority to issue and sell general obligation bonds for 
specified essential and general corporate purposes, including the 
acquisition and construction of certain public improvements within the 
Area and for other urban renewal projects or incentives for development 
consistent with the Plan, as amended.  Such bonds are payable from the 
levy of unlimited ad valorem taxes on all the taxable property within the 
City of Cedar Falls.  It may be, the City will elect to abate some or all of 
the debt service on these bonds with incremental taxes from this Area. 

 
Nothing herein shall be construed as a limitation on the power of the City to exercise 
any lawful power granted to the City under Chapter 15, Chapter 15A, Chapter 403, 
Chapter 427B, or any other provision of the Code of Iowa in furtherance of the 
objectives of this Urban Renewal Plan. 
 

SEVERABILITY/REPEALER  
 
In the event one or more provisions contained in the Urban Renewal Plan or this 
Amendment shall be held for any reason to be invalid, illegal, unauthorized, or 
unenforceable in any respect, such a holding shall not affect any other provision of the 
Urban Renewal Plan or this Amendment, and the Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, 
shall be construed and implemented as if such provisions had never been contained 
herein.  
 
Any parts of the Plan in conflict with this Amendment are hereby repealed. 
 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENTS 
 
The Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, may be further amended from time to time for a 
number of reasons, including but not limited to, to change in the area, to add new urban 
renewal projects, to update and/or modify ongoing urban renewal projects, to delete 
completed urban renewal projects, to add or change land use controls and regulations, 
to modify goals or types of renewal activities, or to amend property acquisition and 
disposition provisions. The City Council may amend the Plan pursuant to appropriate 
procedures under Iowa Code Chapter 403. 

 
EFFECTIVE PERIOD 

  
This Amendment will become effective upon its adoption by the Cedar Falls City 
Council. The Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, will remain in effect until it is repealed 
by City Council.  
 
Because the Urban Renewal Area is based in part on a finding of blight, there is no 
statutory limit, or sunset, on the time period in which the City may implement Tax 

219

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

Increment Financing (TIF) or the “division of revenue,” as those words are used in Iowa 
Code Chapter 403 (2019), within the Urban Renewal Area. At all times, the use of tax 
increment financing revenues (including the amount of loans, advances, indebtedness 
or bonds which qualify for payment from the division of revenue provided in Iowa Code 
Section 403.19) by the City for activities carried out in the Urban Renewal Area shall be 
limited as deemed appropriate by the City Council and consistent with all applicable 
provisions of law. 
  

220

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE COLLEGE HILL URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 
That part of Section 13 and that part of Section 14, Township 89 North, Range 14 West 
of the Fifth P.M. in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa beginning at the 

intersection of the West line of College Street with the South line of Seerley Boulevard; 
thence North along said West line of College Street to the South line of West Twenty-

third Street; thence West along said South line of West Twenty-third Street to the 
Southerly extension of the West line of Campus Street; thence North along said West 
line of Campus Street and its Southerly extension to the North line of West Twentieth 
Street; thence East along said North line of West Twentieth Street to the East line of 

Merner Avenue; thence South along said East line of Merner Avenue to the North line of 
West Twentieth Street; thence East along said North line of West Twentieth Street to 
the West line of College Street; thence North along said West line of College Street to 
the Westerly extension of the North line of West Twentieth Street; thence East along 
said North line of West Twentieth Street and its Westerly extension to the East line of 

Olive Street; thence South along said East line of Olive Street to the South line of 
Seerley Boulevard; thence West along said South line of Seerley Boulevard to the point 

of beginning. 
 

  

221

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
MAP OF THE COLLEGE URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 

  

222

ITEM 21.



 

CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 

any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 

notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 

the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 

public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 

the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 

advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 

the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 

certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 

their respective city offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 

be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 

threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 

right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 

_______________, 2019. 

  

 

 

  

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

(SEAL) 

 
01656458-1\10283-173 

223

ITEM 21.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of November 18, 2019.
	191118MINUTES

	2. Cedar Heights Reconstruction Public Hearing
	1. Memo Council Pubic Hearing (1)

	3. Res for PH on a public improvement for the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction
	4. Ord 2958-PPTE Broadstone
	2958-PPTE Broadstone

	5. Committee of the Whole Minutes 11/18/19
	Comm of the Whole 11 18 19

	6. Committee Work Session Minutes 11/18/19
	Comm of the Whole (Special) 11 18 19

	7. Monthly Report - October 2019
	Monthly Report - October 2019

	8. Tobacco Permit 12/02
	12022019 Tobacco Application

	9. Liquor Licenses 12/02
	Liquor Beer 12-02-19

	10. Service Agreement with POS for Currents
	CurrentsServiceAgreement
	POS-Cf print agreement

	11. Change Order-The Davenport Group
	1-ChangeOrderAmendment
	2-CHANGE ORDER NUMBER ONE TO AGREEMENT FOR THE INSTALLATION AND USE OF LAMA SOFTWARE_CEDAR FALLS_ALL

	12. Facility Use Agreement-Red Cross Disaster site
	1-Memo - disaster site
	2-RedCross

	13. LeadsOnline-Agency Agreement
	Leads Online Contract Memo
	Leads Online Contract

	14. W. 1st Street Relocation Reimbursement Claim
	1.council memo on w 1st street
	2.1656_001

	15. Final Acceptance-W 20th St DRC RCB Culvert Replacement Project
	1. Memo 20th Street Bridge Replacement Final Acceptance of Work
	2. 435_Completion and Final Accep of Work

	16. Supplemental 10A-PSA Snyder-W Viking Rd Trail Infill
	1. Memo_jpf
	2. PSA_SuppAgr10A_VikingRdTrailInfill

	17. Set PH-College Hill SSMID
	1. 2019 College Hill SSMID renewal - memo to Council
	CC materials-Letter-Petition to file at CC

	18. Set PH-DA-Prestige WW, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 12-02-19
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing

	19. Set PH-DA-River Place Properties
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 12-02-19
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing (1)

	20. Set PH-DA-The Vault
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 12-02-19
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - The Vault, LLC

	21. Set PH-Amendment to CH UR Plan
	1_Council Memo on Amendment No. 1 Setting Consultation and PH 12-02-19
	2_Amend No. 1 to College Hill URP - Resolution Setting Dates (Exhibit 1)

	22. Allow Bills and Payroll of December 2, 2019
	Bottom

